
MINUTES 
RANDOLPH COUNTY PLANNING BOARD 

May 7, 2002 
  
  
The Randolph County Planning Board met at 6:30 p.m. on Tuesday, May 7, 2002, in the 

Commissioners’ Meeting Room, Randolph County Office Building, 725 McDowell Road, Asheboro, North 
Carolina. 
  
1. Chairman Maxton McDowell called to order the Randolph County Planning Board meeting at 6:30 

p.m. 
  
2.                  Hal Johnson, Planning Director, called roll of the Members: Maxton McDowell, Chairman, present; 

Bill Dorsett, Vice Chairman, present; Lynden Craven, present; Al Morton, present; Phil Ridge, present; 
Larry Brown, present; and Chris McLeod, present. 

  
3. Brown made the motion, seconded by Craven, to approve the minutes of the March 21st and April 2nd , 

2002 Randolph County Planning Board meetings.  The motion passed unanimously. 
  

Johnson prefaced the meeting with a history of how the County Growth Management Plan was 
created.  Johnson talked about the amount of growth the County has experienced over the past 15 years 
and explained the need for a plan to promote responsible growth.  Johnson stated that it was important 
that the County establish consistency in land use decisions by following the adopted Growth Plan in 
growth management decisions.  Johnson said that there were many public meetings to receive citizen 
input and explained all the work the Board of Commissioners, Planning Board, Planning staff, and 
citizen input committees did to develop this plan.  Johnson talked about the zoning ordinance 
amendments that the Commissioners made to enforce the Growth Management Plan.  Johnson said that 
during this process the County determined that a “large lot” is 3 acres in size and “conventional 
subdivision lots” would be 40,000 sq. ft. in size.  Johnson explained that the plan determines where 
conventional subdivisions should be permitted in the county and also indicates those “Rural Growth 
Areas” where only large lot subdivisions should be permitted.   Johnson explained how the new 
regulations require Neighborhood Information Meetings which allow the County to provide 
information to the communities and an extra opportunity for the County to receive comments from the 
citizens affected.  Johnson briefly discussed the “Development Impact Analysis” that is prepared by 
the Planning staff on each subdivision proposed.  Johnson explained that the Technical Review 
Committee meets to discuss each of the subdivision proposals after each Neighborhood Information 
Meeting and makes formal recommendations to the County Planning Board.  The County Planning 
Board makes recommendations to the Board of County Commissioners concerning compliance with 
policies and standards required by zoning and the Growth Management Plan. 

  
4. REQUESTS FOR PROPERTY REZONING: 
  

A. SCOTT CRUTHIS, Thomasville, North Carolina, is requesting that 14.64 acres located on 
corner of Mamie May Road/Mack Lineberry Road, Polecat Creek Watershed, Providence 
Township, be rezoned from RA to RLOR-CU.  Parcel ID # 7785374705.  The proposed 
Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow a 3 lot subdivision for Class A double-
wide mobile homes. 

  
Johnson said that the Technical Review Committee (TRC) met following the Neighborhood 
Information Meeting and found that the proposal was in compliance with standards 
outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board of County 
Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  It is the understanding of the TRC that the existing 



single-wide mobile home will be replaced by a double-wide mobile home with brick under-
skirting.   The TRC recommended to the County Planning Board that this request be 
approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the TRC found supporting this 
recommendation are: 

  
Policy 2.14 The County should encourage the use of rural-lot subdivision designs in 

those areas where it is found necessary to maximize the infiltration of 
precipitation to a private well-water field and insure sustainable 
groundwater supplies. 

  
Policy 6.5 The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by 

compatible residential development to insure the continued existence of a 
major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality of life in 
Randolph County. 

  
Policy 6.23 The County should encourage the use of rural-lot subdivision designs where 

the size of the lot allows for open space and groundwater recharge areas 
preserved by careful siting of the principal residence and accessory uses as 
noted through subdivision plat notations and related deed restrictions. 

  
Policy 7.6 Stormwater impact should be minimized by designing new development in a 

manner that minimizes concentrated stormwater flow through maximizing 
the length of stormwater sheet flow through vegetated buffer areas.  The 
TRC reviewed this request and found that it is consistent with the Growth 
Management Plan and Zoning Ordinance amendments adopted by the Board 
of Commissioners February 4, 2002.  TRC recommends approval. 

  
Jerry King, Surveyor, thanked the Planning Board for the amount of work they have done in 
creating the Growth Management Plan and Zoning Ordinance amendments.  King said that this 
plan gives guidelines for him to follow.  King said that this subdivision is part of an old farm and 
is located within the Rural Growth Area.  King presented the Board with proposed restrictions to 
protect the neighborhood.  King said that Cruthis had originally planned to build on the property 
but has since purchased other land to develop.  King said that the homes would have a minimum 
square footage of 1300 s.f. of heated space.   

  
Dorsett questioned why lot 2 has frontage on both roads, and King answered this was due to the 
perk site for lot 2 being on Mack Lineberry Road.   

  
King said that the existing mobile home on the property will be removed before any lots are 
sold. 

  
Gary Harvett, 4614 Mack Lineberry Road, said that he has 30 acres that run along Mack 
Lineberry Road.  Harvett said that he was unable to attend the Neighborhood Information 
Meeting.  Harvett said that the proposed restrictions appear to be more like rental agreements and 
expressed concern if the private restrictions (as written) could be enforced.  Harvett said that he 
has a problem with double wide mobile homes being allowed here.  Harvett said that the 
majority of the homes in the area are stick built.  Harvett expressed concern for the property 
values if mobile homes are allowed here.  Harvett expressed concern that this request would set a 
precedence for future developments in the area.  Harvett said they would like to see the request 
be changed to stick-built homes only. 



  
Brown asked for the picture of the area to be placed on the overhead projector.  Johnson said 
that there are 139 stick built homes and 75 mobile homes within 1 mile of the site.  Brown 
explained that he could place 2 single-wide homes on the property now without coming before 
the Board.  

  
Betty Jo Kime, Mack Lineberry Road, said that they understood that this site was sold by Mr. 
Routh for a nice site built home.  Kime expressed concern for groundwater and how all these 
individual wells will affect their wells.  Kime said that the existing mobile home is a junk mobile 
home. 

  
Odell Routh, Hwy 22 North, said that he didn’t have a problem with Cruthis building a house 
here, but he would have a problem with outsiders developing here and causing problems in the 
community.  Routh said that he used to swim in the creek here.  Craven discussed all the 
development that has happened here during the many years since he swam in the creek.  Morton 
explained that these lots will be sold to individuals and not for rental property. 

  
Michelle Caudle, 4348 Mack Lineberry Road, said that they were all looking forward to this 
becoming a horse farm.  Caudle expressed her concern for 3 new driveways along Mack 
Lineberry Road and creating additional traffic to the road.  Caudle said that she is an educator 
and schools are overcrowded.   

  
Harvett said that their main concern is with the double-wide mobile homes, not the number of 
lots.  Harvett asked when the County restricts against all mobile homes. 

  
There were 12 people present in opposition to this request. 

  
Craven said that a nice double-wide mobile home on permanent foundation is not cheap. 

  
McDowell said that it appears that the community is upset that Cruthis changed his mind and 
decided that he would subdivide the property instead of building here. 

  
Brown said that there were no private restrictions placed on the deed when it was sold to 
Cruthis. 
  
Dorsett said he felt it would be better for this area to have 3 double-wide mobile homes on 
permanent foundations than 2 single-wide mobile homes. 

  
Dorsett made the motion, seconded by Morton, to recommend to the Commissioners that this 
request be approved as consistent with the Growth Management Plan.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  
B. SAMUEL HUNT, Asheboro, North Carolina, is requesting that 11.98 acres (out of 12.29 acres) 

located on corner of Stutts Road/Back Creek Church Road, Cedar Grove Township, be rezoned 
from RA to CVOE-CU.  Parcel ID # 7731304943.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning 
District would specifically allow a 12-lot subdivision for site built homes only. 

  
Johnson said that the TRC recommended approval of the project to the County Planning 
Board with the following subdivision modification and conditions: 

  
1. Burial sites of stumps and trees (formerly cleared from the property) must be 

clearly shown on the subdivision plat.  During the NIM, concerns were expressed 



about buried stumps on the property specifically proposed as lot #12.  This would 
adversely affect the possibility of obtaining appropriate building and septic tank 
permits for lot #12.  It may be necessary to eliminate lot #12 and combine it with 
other lots. 

  
2. Installation of wells must be properly constructed and certified as to potable water 

supply prior to the issuance of a building permit on each lot.  Concerns were 
consistently expressed at the NIM concerning availability of well water on adjoining 
parcels. 

  
3. A Level 1 buffer using 35 ft. of natural trees and vegetation shall be maintained and 

platted along the western property line; and a Level 3 buffer, (35 ft. buffer) 
consisting of 2 staggered rows of fast-growing evergreen trees spaced 10 ft. apart, 
and one row of evergreen shrubs shall be installed along the northern property line.  
This row shall include no fewer than 4 trees and 14 shrubs per each 100 linear feet.  
The buffer requirements are recommended due to the extreme topography of the 
property and the need to reduce stormwater erosion run-off.  

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the TRC found supporting this 
recommendation are: 

  
Policy 2.2 The County should ensure long-term, high-quality water supply resources 

within Randolph County by recognizing water resources and infrastructure 
management as a comprehensive effort, encompassing both surface water 
and groundwater, addressing both quality and quantity. 

  
Policy 6.13 Conventional Residential Subdivisions are anticipated of similar housing 

characteristics to the community. 
  

Policy 6.14 Residential subdivisions should, in order to promote efficiencies in the 
delivery of urban services, be encouraged to develop in a fashion which 
minimizes “leap frog” development (i.e., leaving large vacant areas between 
developments). 

  
Policy 7.6 Stormwater impact should be minimized by designing new development in a 

manner that minimizes concentrated stormwater flow through maximizing 
the length of stormwater sheet flow through vegetated buffer areas. 

  
Johnson discussed the possible problems the developer may incur when trying to perk the 
property due to extreme topography.  Johnson said the site plan submitted is for the maximum 
number of lots permitted in a Secondary Growth Area.  Johnson discussed the 100-ft. setback 
requirement for wells adjoining farm properties.  Johnson said that this setback is for wells and 
not structures. 

  
Al Morton dismissed himself from this case due to a personal conflict. 

  
Jerry King, Surveyor, said that Hunt has agreed to comply with all the buffers requested by the 
County.  King talked about the private restrictions that are being proposed.  King said that the 
burial site of these stumps is an approximate 125 ft. x 75 ft. area on lot 12.  King presented 
pictures of the area and pictures of the type of homes he plans to construct here.  King said that 
Hunt has lived in the area less than a mile away.  King said that he is deeply concerned about his 
neighbors.   



  
Doug Walker, 2819 Stutts Road, said that his family has been here for many generations and 
this has been a rural area for many years.  Walker said he didn’t want a subdivision in his front 
yard.  Walker said that this is small lots with small houses.  Walker said that there are big houses 
in the area on family land.  Walker said that he felt Hunt would build nice houses but they would 
be starter homes where people will move in and out.  Walker said that if this is approved it will 
open the door for more of these types of developments to come in.  Walker said he would like to 
see larger homes and larger lot sizes.  Walker said that the average lot size within 1 mile of this 
site is 6 acres.  Walker said that he would like to see 1500 sq. ft. houses with larger lot sizes.  
Walker told the Board if this was their property they wouldn’t want this either. 

  
Harold Baxter, 2956 Stutts Road, said that he is concerned about the water here and the stumps 
that were buried on this property.  Baxter said it took 22 loads of dirt to cover the stumps.  Baxter 
asked the Board to consider a buffer along his western property line (on proposed lot #7). 

  
Pam Hughes, 2658 Stutts Road, said that she has lived here 19 years and is concerned that the 
large tracts adjoining her would be next for development.  Hughes said that several wells have 
gone dry in the area.  Hughes said they own 110 acres here and felt the community should be 
considered Rural, not Secondary. 

  
Arnold Smith, 353 Back Creek Church Road, said that this is too many houses on lots that are 
too small.  Smith expressed concern for the water problems in the area.  Smith said that he didn’t 
feel there should be more than 5 lots approved here. 

  
There were 23 people present in opposition. 

  
Harold Gowdy, 3038 Stutts Road, said he is opposed to the request for the same reasons his 
neighbors have expressed.  Gowdy said that he has no personal objection to Hunt but he does 
oppose the project.  Gowdy questioned if this development would affect farming on his property, 
and Johnson answered it would not impact his farming operation.  Gowdy said he felt the 
neighborhood meeting was helpful and asked the Board to take into consideration their concerns. 

  
Nancy Staley, 291 Back Creek Church Road, said that she felt this would be out of character 
with their community.  Staley said that they are on their second well currently and several others 
in the community are also.  Staley also said the lots and houses should be larger. 

  
Dorsett said that he felt the lots along the new road should be required to be along the new road 
(and not Stutts Road).  Dorsett said that this may well be in keeping with the land use plan but he 
felt it should also be in keeping with the immediate community.  Dorsett said he did wish the 
County could determine the groundwater supply (in the area), which could help answer 
questions/concerns of the neighbors. 

  
Ridge said he could understand the issue of house size and felt it would be more compatible if 
the houses were in the1500-1600-sq.-ft range.  Ridge also said that 12 houses on 12 acres is very 
dense. 

  
Dorsett made the motion to recommend to the Commissioners that this request be denied due to 
density.  Ridge seconded this motion.  

  
Dorsett said that he didn’t feel this was a vote against the Growth Management Plan; rather, 
there are unique topographical features of this area relating to this specific subdivision proposal. 

  



This motion passed with a 3 to 2 - Craven and McLeod voted against the motion.    
  

C. KEVIN HILL, Seagrove, North Carolina, is requesting that 4.21 acres located on Jones Road, 
Tabernacle Township, be rezoned from RA to CVOM-CU.  Parcel ID# 7712856496.  The 
proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would specifically allow the development of a 4 lot 
subdivision for Class-B single-wide mobile homes. 

  
Johnson said the TRC met following the Neighborhood Information Meeting and found 
that the proposal was in compliance with standards outlined in the new Growth 
Management Plan adopted by the Board of County Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  
The Committee noted the intention to not allow homes older than five (5) years.  The 
Technical Review Committee recommended to the County Planning Board that this 
request be approved. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the TRC found supporting this 
recommendation are: 

  
Policy 6.5 The protection of viable rural neighborhoods should be encouraged by 

compatible residential development to insure their continued existence as a 
major housing source and as a reflection of the long-term quality of life in 
Randolph County. 

  
Policy 6.12 Factors to be considered in major subdivision approval in Primary and 

Secondary Growth Areas should include suitability of soils, access to major 
thoroughfares, the potential availability of public services and facilities and 
community compatibility. 

  
Policy 6.13 Conventional Residential subdivisions are anticipated of similar housing 

characteristics to the community. 
  

Jerry King, Surveyor, presented restrictions to the Board.  King explained that there are several 
single-wide mobile homes in the area and presented pictures of the area.  King said that 
Davidson Water will serve the property. 

  
Lee Manges, 545 Mt. Shepherd Road, said that he is concerned about the single-wide mobile 
homes.  Manges said that the mile radius is a misconception because there is a mobile home park 
on Mt Shepherd Road Extension.  Manges said that most of the homes in the immediate area are 
site built homes.  Manges said that he felt this would devalue their property.  Manges said he 
didn’t object to the development but he is opposed to single wide mobile homes. 

  
Fred Freedle, 542 Mt. Shepherd Road, said that he felt these mobile homes are devaluing his 
property.  Freedle said that his concern is that they raise his taxes but continue to allow more 
mobile homes in the area.  Freedle said he was upset with the evaluation of his property by the 
Tax Department.      

  
Dorsett said that he felt that to continue to allow single wide mobile homes here would be a 
disservice to the community and to the church camp.  Dorsett said he felt double-wides would be 
appropriate but he didn’t feel single wide mobile homes would be. 

  
Morton said he would like to see it upgraded but there are single-wides on both sides of the 
property. 

  



Morton made the motion to recommend this request be approved with the condition of 
permanent underpinning.  Craven seconded the motion and the motion passed with a vote of 5 to 
1 - Dorsett voted against the motion. 

  
D. WILLIAM SMITH, Liberty, North Carolina, is requesting that 4.00 acres (out of 9.09 acres) 

located at 3472 Old 421 Road, Liberty Township, Rocky River Watershed, be rezoned from RA 
to HC/CU.  Parcel ID # 8735463361.  The proposed Conditional Use Zoning District would 
specifically allow an auto repair and auto body shop in an existing 50' x 70' building and a 
proposed 50' x 70' building to be constructed on site. 

  
Johnson said the TRC met and found that this proposal was in compliance with the 
standards outlined in the new Growth Management Plan adopted by the Board of County 
Commissioners on February 4, 2002.  The TRC recommended to the County Planning 
Board that this request be approved with the condition that the applicant submit 
appropriate Watershed Site Plans and Spill Containment Plans prior to operating the 
business. 

  
Examples of some Growth Management Policies that the TRC found supporting this 
recommendation are: 

  
Policy 4.2 Highway-oriented commercial uses should be clustered along segments of 

arterial streets and contain land uses that are mutually compatible and 
reinforcing in use and design.  They should be designed in a way that 
minimizes signage, access points and excessive lengths for commercial strip 
development. 

  
Policy 7.5 Site plans should be provided that design built-upon areas to specifically 

minimize stormwater runoff impact to streams and other receiving waters. 
  

Smith said that he purchased the property 3 to 4 years ago and didn’t realize it was not zoned for 
commercial use.  Smith said that it was a truck repair business at that time.  Smith said that he 
would use the new building for storage/warehousing.  Smith said that most of the land around 
this property is commercial or industrial. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
McLeod made the motion, seconded by Craven, to recommend to the Commissioners this 
request be approved.  The motion passed unanimously.  

  
5. SWEARING IN OF THE WITNESSES: 
  

“Do you swear or affirm that the information you are about to give is the truth, the whole truth, and 
nothing but the truth, so help you God?” 
  
Two people took this Oath. 

  
6. SPECIAL USE PERMIT REQUESTS: 

  
A. CLYDE & MARJORIE HENDERSON, Sophia, North Carolina, are requesting a Special Use 

Permit to allow a Planned Rural Development (to allow an additional residence for family 
member) to be located at 4551 Walker Mill Road on 5.00 acres, New Market Township, 
Randleman Lake Watershed, Zoning District RA, Parcel ID # 7746204183. 



  
Rhonda Henderson, 4555 Walker Mill Road, said that they are asking permission to place 
another residence on the property for a family member (son and daughter-in-law).  Henderson 
said that her father has cancer and requires constant care. 

  
There was no one present in opposition to this request. 

  
Brown made the motion, seconded by Craven, to approve this request for a Special Use Permit.  
The motion passed unanimously. 

  
7. Approval of Order for Board of Adjustment Decision on an Appeal from an Action of the Zoning 

Enforcement Officer. 
  

Craven made the motion, seconded by Dorsett, to approve this Order.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

  
8. The meeting adjourned at 8:48 p.m.  There were 54 citizens present for this meeting. 
  
______________________________________________________________________________ 

NORTH CAROLINA 
RANDOLPH COUNTY 

 


